
 
CHARLOTTE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED 

LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD (LCB) 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

CHARLOTTE COUNTY – PUNTA GORDA 
METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

Tel: (941) 883-3535 
 

AGENDA 
10:00 A.M., Thursday, May 4, 2023 
Charlotte County Transit Facility 

545 Theresa Blvd 
Port Charlotte, Florida   33954 

(also available online via TEAMS - (Please see the next page for details) 
 
1. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

 
4. Consent Agenda: 

A. Approval of Minutes:  January 5, 2023 LCB Public Meeting Minutes 
B.   Approval of Minutes:  January 5, 2023 Regular LCB Meeting Minutes 
C.   Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) Annual Planning  
  Grant to the MPO 

 
5. Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund (TDTF) Trip and Equipment Grant 
 
6. FY 2021/2022-FY 2025/2026 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan/Coordinated 

Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan (TDSP/CPT-HSTP) Annual 
Update Including Rate Model Calculations 
 

7. 2023 CTC Evaluation 
 

8. Community Transportation Coordinator Quarterly Reports for October-December  
2022 and January-March 2023 

 
9.   Section 5311 Grant Application Update  
 
10.  Public Comments 
 
11.  Staff Comments 

 
12.  Member Comments 
 
13.  Adjournment (NEXT MEETING – SEPTEMBER 7, 2023) 
 

*Please let us know if you or your alternate cannot attend. If participating, please let us 
know if it will be in person or virtual.  Thank you! 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
No stenographic record by a certified court reporter is made of these meetings. Accordingly, anyone seeking to appeal any decisions involving 
the matters herein will be responsible for making a verbatim record of the meeting/testimony and evidence upon which any appeal is to be based. 
(F.S. 286.0105) 
                                                                                                                                                     
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT AND CHAPTER 286.26 FLORIDA STATUTES, 
PERSONS NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING SHOULD CONTACT THE 
CHARLOTTE COUNTY-PUNTA GORDA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48) 
HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. CALL (941) 883-3535 BETWEEN 8:00 A.M. AND 4:00 P.M., MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY. 
 
The MPO’s planning process is conducted in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes.  Any person or 
beneficiary who believes he or she has been discriminated against because of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability, or familial 
status may file a complaint with the Charlotte County-Punta Gorda MPO Title VI Coordinator Wendy W. Scott at (941) 883-3535 or by writing 
her at the address below. 
 

CHARLOTTE COUNTY-PUNTA GORDA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
Charlotte County Administration Center, 18500 Murdock Circle, Port Charlotte, FL   33948 

Telephone: (941) 883-3535 
 
 
 

   
The Charlotte County Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board (LCB) will hold 
a quarterly meeting on May 4, 2023 in person (with virtual participation also available).  Please 
contact the MPO staff to obtain TEAMS log-in information.  Persons wishing to provide public 
comment still will be allowed to do so by alternative means, should they so desire. Written 
comments may be submitted by either emailing the comments to office@ccmpo.com or mailing 
the comments to MPO LCB Staff, 18500 Murdock Circle, Port Charlotte, Florida, 33948.  
Comments must be received for the meeting by noon. May 3, 2023.  The comments will be read 
by an MPO staff member during the meeting for that item to be placed in the record.  More 
information regarding the LCB Agenda is available on the MPO website at www.ccmpo.com.  
 
 



 
 
 
 

MAY 4, 2023 
LCB MEETING 

 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS #4 
 
 



 
 
 

MAY 4, 2023 
LCB MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM # 4-A 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  JANUARY 5, 2023 LCB PUBLIC MEETING 
 
 
Purpose: To review and approve the Minutes of the LCB Public Meeting. 
 
Agenda Item Presented by:  MPO Staff 
 
Discussion:  To Be Determined 
 
Recommendation: Motion to approve the Minutes of the LCB Public Meeting  
 
Attachment: Minutes of the January 5, 2023 Annual Public Meeting  
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

CHARLOTTE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED  
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD (LCB) PUBLIC MEETING  

 
Minutes of a Public Meeting held in a hybrid format on January 5, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. utilizing 
Microsoft TEAMS remotely and in-person at the Transit Facility, 545 Theresa Blvd. in Port 
Charlotte, FL 33954.   The Regular LCB Meeting was held immediately following the Public 
Meeting. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT IN-PERSON 
 
Commissioner Ken Doherty, Charlotte County Commissioner (LCB Chair) 
Tony Conte, Public Education-School Transportation 
Donna Fain, Agency for People with Disabilities 
Angela Hemstreet, Goodwill, Children-at-Risk Representative 
Jocene Henderson, Veterans Affairs 
Carmen Henry, Regional Workforce Development 
Candice Monroy, FDOT, District One Modal Development Office 
M. Suzanne Roberts, Virginia B. Andes Volunteer Community Clinic (Medical Community 
Representative) 
Duane Siegfried, Representative for Elderly Interests 
Michael Stahler, Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA), alternate 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT REMOTELY 
 
Leigh Ann Bellamy, Division of Blind Services 
Dottie Fulton, Citizen Advocate-User 
Tabitha Larrauri, Department of Children & Families 
Maricela Morado, Area Agency on Aging-Florida Department of Elder Affairs 
Joseph Sabatino, Citizen Advocate 
 
ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Vacant, Disabled Representative 
Vacant, Economically Disadvantaged Representative 
Ryan Lybeck, Local Private-for-Profit Transportation Industry Representative  
 
STAFF PRESENT IN-PERSON 
 
Wendy Scott, MPO Planner 
Betty-Ann Sherer, MPO Planner 
Rick Kolar, Charlotte County Transit Operations Manager (CTC)  
Heidi Maddox, Charlotte County Transit 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE IN-PERSON  
 
Richard Weingarten, Citizen 
 
 
 



 

2 
 

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE REMOTELY  
 
Anne Tien, Charlotte County Fiscal 
 
1. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 
Chair Ken Doherty called the Public Meeting to order at 10:00 am, prior to the regular quarterly 
LCB Meeting. Wendy Scott reviewed the LCB hybrid meeting protocol.  Betty-Ann Sherer 
provided an onscreen view of the agenda throughout the meeting. The roll call was taken.  
  
2. Welcome to the Public 
 
Chair Doherty conducted the annual Public Meeting in compliance with the requirements of the 
Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD). 
 
Chair Doherty called for public comment. The citizen present did not wish to speak at that time. 

 
3.        Purpose of the Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program including the 
           Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) – CTD brochure 
  
Wendy Scott gave a general overview of the Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program 
utilizing the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) brochure entitled 
Need a Ride?  In particular, she reviewed the five (5) key elements listed in the brochure.  She 
also noted the CTD Ombudsman Line.  Ms. Scott encouraged participation in the TD Voluntary 
Dollar Program, available when annual vehicle registration renewals are paid either online or via 
mail.  She commented that the numbers were variable each year.  
 
Wendy Scott stated that more detailed information on the TD program would be provided to 
members during Agenda Item 6 - Overview of the LCB Process (Annual Training) at the regular 
quarterly LCB meeting which would begin immediately following the LCB Public Meeting.  All 
were welcome to attend. 
  
4. Public Comment Period on TD Program or TDSP 
 
No member of the public wished to comment.   
             
5. Adjourn  
 
Chair Doherty adjourned the Public Meeting at 10:07 a.m. and proceeded to the regular 
quarterly Charlotte Local Coordinating Board Meeting. 



 
 
 

MAY 4, 2023 
LCB MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM # 4-B 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  JANUARY 5, 2023 REGULAR LCB MEETING 
 
 
Purpose: To review and approve the Minutes of the previous LCB Meeting. 
 
Agenda Item Presented by:  MPO Staff 
 
Discussion:  To Be Determined 
 
Recommendation: Motion to approve the Minutes of the January 5, 2023 LCB Meeting  
 
Attachment: Minutes of the January 5, 2023 LCB Meeting  
 
 



 

CHARLOTTE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED  
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD (LCB)  

REGULAR MEETING  
JANUARY 5, 2023 

 
Minutes of a regular meeting held in a hybrid format on January 5, 2023 utilizing TEAMS 
remotely and in-person at the Transit Facility, 545 Theresa Blvd. in Port Charlotte, FL 33954.   
The Regular LCB Meeting was held immediately following the Public Meeting. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT IN-PERSON 
 
Commissioner Ken Doherty, Charlotte County Commissioner (LCB Chair) 
Tony Conte, Public Education-School Transportation 
Donna Fain, Agency for People with Disabilities 
Angela Hemstreet, Goodwill, Children-at-Risk Representative 
Jocene Henderson, Veterans Affairs 
Carmen Henry, Regional Workforce Development 
Candice Monroy, FDOT, District One Modal Development Office 
M. Suzanne Roberts, Virginia B. Andes Volunteer Community Clinic (Medical Community 
Representative) 
Duane Siegfried, Representative for Elderly Interests 
Michael Stahler, Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA), alternate 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT REMOTELY 
 
Leigh Ann Bellamy, Division of Blind Services 
Dottie Fulton, Citizen Advocate-User 
Tabitha Larrauri, Department of Children & Families 
Maricela Morado, Area Agency on Aging-Florida Department of Elder Affairs 
Joseph Sabatino, Citizen Advocate 
 
ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Vacant, Disabled Representative 
Vacant, Economically Disadvantaged Representative 
Ryan Lybeck, Local Private-for-Profit Transportation Industry Representative  
 
STAFF PRESENT IN-PERSON 
 
Wendy Scott, MPO Planner 
Betty-Ann Sherer, MPO Planner 
Rick Kolar, Charlotte County Transit Operations Manager (CTC)  
Heidi Maddox, Charlotte County Transit 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE IN-PERSON  
 
Richard Weingarten, Citizen 



2 
 

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE REMOTELY  
 
Anne Tien, Charlotte County Fiscal 
 
1. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
LCB Chair Ken Doherty called the regular LCB Meeting to order at 10:08 a.m.   An in-person 
quorum was present.       
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
3. Public Comments on Agenda Items 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
4.          Consent Agenda Item 
 

A.   Approval of Minutes:  November 3, 2022 Quarterly LCB Meeting Minutes 
 
Tony Conte made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Suzanne Roberts seconded the 
motion. The Consent Agenda was approved unanimously. 
 
5. Election of the Vice-Chairperson   
 
The LCB Bylaws require the election of a Vice-Chairperson during the first scheduled meeting 
of the calendar year.  The Vice-Chairperson shall be elected by a majority vote of a quorum of 
the members of the Board present.  The chosen LCB Member serves a term of one year starting 
with the first meeting after the election.  The Vice-Chairperson may serve more than one term, 
and shall, during the absence of the Chair, have and exercise all the duties and powers of the 
Chair.  The Vice-Chairperson shall also perform other such duties as may be assigned by the 
Chair. 
 
LCB Chair Ken Doherty noted that Alan Skavroneck who had volunteered for many years as 
LCB Vice-Chairperson would no longer be serving on the LCB.  At this point, Wendy Scott 
began chairing the meeting and asked for nominations for LCB Vice-Chairperson. 
 
Commissioner Doherty nominated Suzanne Roberts in light of her years of experience on the 
LCB, as LCB Vice-Chairperson, and she consented to the nomination.  There were no additional 
nominations, and Ms. Roberts was approved unanimously as LCB Vice-Chairperson. 
 
Chair Doherty resumed chairing the meeting. 
 
 
 



3 
 

6. Overview of the LCB Process (Annual Training) 
 
As described in the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) annual planning 
grant executed with the Charlotte County-Punta Gorda MPO, planning staff members are 
required to annually “provide technical assistance and training for the local coordinating board.”  
This is accomplished at the January LCB meeting each year.  In past years, staff utilized an 
instructional PowerPoint presentation.  This year, it had been updated with new information and 
was part of the meeting packet. This year, staff also had developed an instructional video which 
made its debut at the meeting.  The video’s information was derived from the PowerPoint.  The 
video was well received from the LCB Members who requested a link to the presentation so that 
they could distribute it widely.  LCB Members provided applause at the video’s end. 
 
7. Review/Endorsement of Charlotte County’s Section 5310 Grant Applications   
  
Federal transportation legislation includes the FTA Section 5310 (Operating and Capital) 
funding programs, which are aimed at enhancing mobility for seniors and the disabled.  This 
year, Charlotte County Transit is applying for an operating Section 5310 grant. 
 
Candice Monroy stated that she would be abstaining from voting on this item given her position 
at the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) in the grant review process. 
 
Richard Weingarten inquired if additional narrative should have been included in the Section 
5310 grant attachment for LCB Member review.  Candice Monroy indicated that FDOT reviews 
the entire package, but the Application for Federal Assistance SF 424 Form provides a good 
general overview of the request.  She noted that no FDOT review had yet begun on the grant 
application.  When asked, Wendy Scott stated that LCB review was not required prior to action 
by the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) on the grant application.  Commissioner Doherty 
commented that during his time as Chair in the recent past, these documents had been key to the 
LCB Members’ review, and the entire package was always available through public records.  He 
recommended contacting MPO staff to obtain copies of all the grant materials if desired.   
 
Tony Conte made a motion to endorse the Section 5310 Grant Applications, and Suzanne 
Roberts seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
8. Quarterly Report 
 
Given the timing of the holiday period and a very short turnaround time, the CTC Quarterly 
Report covering the October-December 2022 timeframe was not available for the January 5, 
2023, LCB meeting.  It will be reviewed along with the January-March 2023 report at the May 4, 
2023, LCB meeting.   
 
9. Public Comments 
 
Rich Weingarten stated that the meeting was well done.  Chair Doherty appreciated Mr. 
Weingarten’s attendance. 
 
 



4 
 

10. Staff Comments 
 
Wendy Scott gave the following report: 
 
(1) Thanks to everyone for participating in our LCB Meeting today. MPO Staff Members wished 
to express their gratitude to LCB Chair Doherty and other LCB Members and County staff who 
assisted with the development of the member training video by providing narration.  Wendy 
Scott praised Betty-Ann Sherer, who managed to assemble the video before/during/after a 
Category 4 hurricane with an evacuated office.  MPO staff has temporary quarters at the 
Murdock Administration Center Building B Annex, Room 200 (Real Estate Conference Room), 
but staff is often away at meetings or working remotely.  D’Juan Harris and Laks Gurram are 
currently at other meetings this morning.  If wishing to contact an MPO Staff Member, please 
email or phone, and staff will respond as soon as possible. 
 
(2)  There are currently two LCB vacancies: (1) a representative for disabled interests who is a 
disabled individual, and (2) a representative for the Economically Disadvantaged community 
(formerly held by Mike Mansfield of Habitat for Humanity).    
 
(3) TD Legislative Day will be held in Tallahassee at the Capitol Building on March 16, 2023.  
Vehicles and program advocates converge on the Capitol grounds to increase program 
awareness.  This is the same date that a Commission Business Meeting will be held at the nearby 
Burns Building Auditorium.  You or your organizational representatives in the Panhandle area 
are invited to participate. 

(End Staff Comments) 
 
11. Member Comments  
 
Leigh Ann Bellamy expressed her appreciation for the transit service received by her clients so 
that they could access work and appointments. 
 
Dottie Fulton enjoyed the informative meeting, especially the training video, and wished all a 
blessed time until the next meeting. 
 
Maricela Morado also enjoyed the training video.  She noted that her agency still had 
incontinence supplies and robotic pets available for seniors.  Betty-Ann Sherer commented on 
how much her mother-in-law was enjoying a robotic dog that she’d received from the 
organization.  It was agreed that Maricela Morado and Joseph Sabatino would coordinate on 
donations that could be provided to citizens at community food pantry outreach efforts.  
 
Candice Monroy covered the following FDOT topics (per these meeting points):  

FDOT ‐  Charlotte County LCB Points 
Meeting date 01/05/2023 I Time 10:00 am I Charlotte County Transit Department, 545 

Theresa Blvd., Port Charlotte, FL 33954 
 



5 
 

Topics: 
 
 

Agenda topic Additional Grant funding Opportunities for (FFY} 21 I State Fiscal 
Year 2021/2022 and (FFY} 22 I State Fiscal Year 2022/2023 

• FTA Section 5310 and 5311 CRRSAA (Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act) 

and ARP (American Rescue Plan) funding - Programmed in State Fiscal Year 2021/2022 and State Fiscal 

Year 2022/2023. 

• Public Transportation Grant Agreements for FY 21/22 have been executed. Public Transportation Grant 

Agreements for FY 22/23 are currently being drafted. 

 
Agenda topic Grants for Federal Fiscal Year (FFY} 22 I State Fiscal Year 2022/2023 

FTA Section 5310, 5311, and 5339 applications - Due date for applications was December 

17, 2021. We received 20 applications. Recommendations letters were sent to all agencies. 

Public Transportation Grant Agreements will be sent to Agencies between October and 

March. 

 
Agenda topic Grants for Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 23 I State Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

FTA Section 5310, 5311, and 5339 applications -The due date for applications was Friday, December 16, 2022. An 

update will be provided once Committee Meetings and recommendations have been made. 

 
Agenda topic Triennial Reviews 

 
Round 2 of the FDOT triennial reviews began in February 2021. We will begin with 

agencies that receive only FTA Section 5310 funding with the larger agencies to follow. 

There are currently 30 agencies to review. 

The Consultants performing the Triennial Review on behalf of the FDOT are: 
 

• Center Urban Transportation Research (CUTR) - for areas of Safety and Security and Maintenance 

• Atkins - for all other review areas. 

(End FDOT Report) 
 
Angela Hemstreet described Goodwill facilities post-Ian:   
 

 location in Port Charlotte at US 41 near Midway Blvd. was a total loss and closed now 
 location in Englewood had less damage and was open 
 location in Port Charlotte at Peachland Blvd. had only minor damage and was open (with 

many customers from the US 41 store migrating there to shop and donate 
 location in Punta Gorda was undamaged and open 

 
She provided handouts to LCB Members for distribution to their contacts regarding Computer 
Classes/Digital Training being offered at the Goodwill Community Resource Centers in 
Southwest Florida.  The programs were designed to offer participants career navigation and 



6 
 

increased independence as part of Goodwill’s Opportunity Accelerator program.  They also help 
seniors acquiring skills needed to access the internet.  Angela Hemstreet observed that she was 
available to transition over to the LCB Economically Disadvantaged representative position if 
this was an option.  Wendy Scott and Betty-Ann Sherer agreed to coordinate her request to 
transfer positions. 
 
Jocey Henderson thanked Angela Hemstreet for the information cards on Goodwill’s digital 
training opportunities which could greatly benefit the clients of the County’s Veterans Services 
Department.  Jocey Henderson stated that she had been actively trying to recruit an LCB disabled 
representative and transit drivers from her client group. 
 
Carmen Henry stated that CareerSource Southwest Florida had been dealing with Hurricane Ian 
recovery with the Charlotte office briefly shut due to damage.  She noted that her organization 
had received an emergency grant through the National Dislocated Worker Program.  It is 
designed to place people into temporary fairly long-term positions with costs covered by 
CareerSource Southwest Florida. 
 
Suzanne Roberts thanked LCB Members for choosing her to be LCB Vice-Chairperson and 
stated that she was honored and looking forward to a wonderful LCB year.  She expressed her 
pride in the Charlotte County BCC with their approval of the mobile medical bus through 
partnership with the Virginia B. Andes (VBA) Community Clinic.  Charlotte County Transit was 
also partnering in the effort.  It was hoped that the vehicle would be available by the third quarter 
from a Texas manufacturer.  She noted that there had been a great deal of mention of the project 
in the newspaper and digital editions of the Charlotte Sun-Herald.  Ms. Roberts also described 
ongoing hurricane recovery efforts at the VBA Clinic (including roof, air conditioning and 
generator improvements).  She described how the entire medical community had been greatly 
impacted by Hurricane Ian.  She requested that LCB Members refer new patients to the Clinic, 
which recently had been the recipient of a Gulf Coast Community Foundation grant.  She noted 
that the storm had created some newly economically disadvantaged residents.  She also provided 
members with a handout regarding an upcoming BINGO fundraiser event for the Clinic to be 
held on Friday, January 13, 2023. 
 
Tony Conte provided a School Board hurricane recovery update.  He noted that all shelters were 
now restored including roofs and interiors.  Additionally, Port Charlotte Middle School was back 
online.  All buses had fared well, since he had decided to pull them from the Englewood area 
prior to Hurricane Ian’s impact.  However, the Englewood maintenance garage including two 
lifts had been ruined, so all repairs where now being conducted out of the Punta Gorda facility. 
 
Duane Siegfried expressed interest in working with MPO staff on efforts to coordinate with the 
elderly community. 
 
LCB Chair Ken Doherty stated that he was looking forward to this year.  Although repair and 
recovery will take a while to put the community back in order, he had observed lots of 
interesting, new things were happening in the area.  As far as economic development, this was 
evidenced by the number of building permits and new resident arrivals.  He was excited and 
optimistic for the future with some great things coming.  LCB Chair Doherty also expressed his 



7 
 

pride in the community with all local governments working together to accomplish needed 
improvements.   He urged all to remain optimistic and try not to get discouraged with the repair 
process. He felt it was going to be a great year. 
 
12.       Adjournment (Next Meeting – May 4, 2023) at the Charlotte County Transit 
Facility, 545 Theresa Blvd., Port Charlotte, FL 33954) 

LCB Chair Ken Doherty stated that the next LCB meeting was scheduled for May 4, 2023 at the 
Transit Facility located at 545 Theresa Blvd. in Port Charlotte, FL 33954.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 10:58 a.m.   



 
 

MAY 4, 2023 
LCB MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM # 4-C 

FLORIDA COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED (CTD) 
ANNUAL PLANNING GRANT TO THE MPO 

 
Purpose: To provide LCB members with information on the CTD Planning Grant received 

by the Charlotte County-Punta Gorda Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
 
Agenda Item Presented by:  MPO Staff 
 
Discussion:  
 
The MPO annually receives a Transportation Disadvantaged Planning Grant from the Florida 
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) starting on July 1 each year.  The 
amount received for FY 2023/2024 will be approximately $25,081.35.  These funds pay a 
portion of MPO staff salaries for work performed as the Official Planning Agency for the 
Charlotte Transportation Disadvantaged program.   
 
Recommendation: None (information only) 
 
Attachment: None  
 
 



 
 

MAY 4, 2023 
LCB MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM # 5  

TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED TRUST FUND (TDTF)  
TRIP AND EQUIPMENT GRANT 

 
Purpose: To provide LCB members with information on the TDTF Trip and Equipment 

Grant for FY 2023/2024  
 
Agenda Item Presented by: Charlotte County Staff 
 
Discussion:      
 
Each year, a portion of the State Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund (TDTF) is  
allocated to each Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) to provide trips and equipment 
for non-sponsored TD service.   
 
The funding amount for FY 2023/2024 Trip and Equipment Grant plus Voluntary Dollar funding 
(commencing July 1, 2023) is not yet available for packet distribution.  An update will be 
provided at the May 4, 2023 LCB Meeting. 
 
Here are last year’s figures: 
 
 Trip & Equipment Grant allocation   $ 544,101 
 Local Match     $  60, 455 
 Total Funding     $ 604,556 
 
 Voluntary Dollar    $          77 
 Local Match     $             8 
 Total        85 
 
 Grand Total     $ 604,641 
 
 
Recommendation: None  
 
Attachment: None 

 
 

 
 



 
MAY 4, 2023 

  LCB MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 6 
FY 2021/2022-FY 2025/2026 TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED SERVICE 

PLAN/COORDINATED PUBLIC TRANSIT-HUMAN SERVICES TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN (TDSP/CPT-HSTP) ANNUAL UPDATE INCLUDING  

RATE MODEL CALCULATIONS 
 
Purpose: Approval of the TDSP/CPT-HSTP First Annual Update (including the rate model 

calculations)  
 
Agenda Item Presented by: Charlotte County and MPO staff 
 
Discussion:   
 
On March 30, 2021, the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) designated the 
Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners (BCC) as the Community Transportation 
Coordinator (CTC) for Charlotte County for a five-year period commencing July 1, 2021.  A 
new Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) was approved by the LCB on 
September 9, 2021.  This document also serves as the Coordinated Public Transit-Human 
Services Transportation Plan (CPT-HSTP) for purposes of Federal transportation legislation 
requirements. The attached change pages will serve as an update to the current document and 
require approval by the LCB prior to submission to the CTD.  Staff will revise Table of Contents 
page numbering if needed once updated materials are approved.  
 
Update Actions: 

 Revision of Cover Page with date of first annual update 
 Provide new contractor’s name, pg 9  
 Correction regarding conference room/deletion of charging station statement, pg 12 
 Revision to Public Participation (CTC Survey 2023), pg. 16 
 Mention of Hurricane Ian, Revision of Unemployment Figures, pg. 20 
 Revision of Plaza Name, pg. 24 
 Deletion of Ameditrans as driver and bus washer contractor/Addition of transportation 

provider, Comfort Travel, pg. 26 
 Mention of Hurricane Ian’s impact as a Barrier to Coordination, pg. 32 
 Deletion of old contractor information/Insertion of new contractor information, pgs. 

42-43 
 Insertion of new 2022 Bus Transit System Annual Safety and Security Certification, 

(letter dated February 1, 2023), pg. 44 
 Age change for Escorts and Children, pg. 51 
 New terminology changing operators to drivers, pg. 53 
 Most recent CTC Evaluation date, pg. 58 
 Insertion of new Transit Organizational Chart in Appendix B, pg. 63 
 Insertion of new Bus Inventory as Appendix G, pgs. 76-77 
 Insertion of Appendix J, 2023 CTC Evaluation, pg 89-98 
 Insertion of Appendix M, Web-based TD Application, pg. 110-117 

 
 
 



 
 
 
These items were not available at time of packet distribution and will be emailed and posted to 
the MPO website when available: 
 

 Insertion of new Charlotte County Transit Emergency Preparedness and Disaster Plan 
information, pgs. 46-49 
 

(Note:  The entire draft document will be available upon request and will be posted on the MPO 
website post-meeting approval.) 
 
Recommendation: Motion to update the FY 2021-2022/FY 2025-2026 Transportation 

Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) / Charlotte County Coordinated 
Public Transit – Human Services Transportation Plan (including the rate 
model calculations); allowing Transit staff to make minor technical 
adjustments to the rate model per CTD staff guidance. 

 
Attachment: Attachment 1 Draft FY 2021-2022/FY 2025-2026 Transportation 

Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) / Charlotte County Coordinated 
Public Transit – Human Services Transportation Plan (CPT-HSTP) 
Update change pages 

 
Attachment 2 04 26 2023 addition - New rate model calculations in 
Appendix H, pgs. 78-86  
 
Attachment 3 05 02 2023 addition - TD Rate Model 5 Year Comparison 
 
Attachment 4 05 02 2023 addition - New Charlotte County Transit No 
Show Policy in Appendix C, pgs. 64-65 
 

 
 



























(23) Transit Clients with Medical Conditions. The Charlotte County Transit Division
accepts TD clients who are ambulatory or in wheelchairs in a non-discriminatory manner. Every 
effort will be made to provide safe and dignified service. 

(24) Vehicle Maintenance. Vehicles are to be cleaned weekly and to be checked on a
regular basis for safety, passenger comfort, performance and appearance. If the safety of the 
vehicle is in doubt, the use of the vehicle will be suspended. Because of the COVID- 19 
pandemic, sanitation measures on transit buses have been greatly enhanced. 

(25) No-Show Policy. A TD client can cancel a trip up to one hour before the scheduled
trip without being considered a no-show. However, if a client does not cancel a trip at least one 
hour prior to the scheduled trip, or is not at the appointed place of pick-up, and these 
circumstances occur three times in six months, the client may lose the privilege of TD services. 
Those clients utilizing the service for life-sustaining medical purposes will not be suspended for 
no-shows. 

(26) Billing Requirements. Transit currently bills the various agencies in various
formats prescribed by the agencies. 

(27) Eating and Drinking. Consuming food or drinking any beverage is not allowed on
Charlotte County transit vehicles, unless it is an approved reasonable modification. 

(28) Two-way Communication. All Transit vehicles will be equipped with a two-way
communication system in good working order. 

(29) Air Conditioning/Heating. All Charlotte County Transit vehicles will be equipped
with air conditioning and heating. Any vehicle not meeting this requirement will

° 

be scheduled 
for repair. 

(30) First Aid and CPR. The Charlotte County Transit Division requires that all bus
operators drivers, dispatchers and Transit Operations Coordinators maintain current CPR/First 
Aid certifications. 

(31) Driver Criminal Background Screening. Transit and contract operators are in
·compliance with the FTA, FDOT, and the various funding agencies, as reflected in the System
Safety Plan.

(32) Security Cameras. Charlotte County Transit vehicles are equipped with cameras.

53 



























Fiscal Services-Grants Section/Transit
Charlottte County Transit TD Rate Comparison

FY 20 FY 21 FY22 FY23 FY24
Ambulatory 15.15$                16.68$                18.24$                20.44$                30.37$                
Wheel Chair 25.97$                28.59$                31.27$                35.03$                52.06$                
Group per passenger 7.86$                  8.74$                  9.50$                  10.69$                14.64$                

Total Expenditures per rate calc 1,249,962.00$   1,457,542.00$   1,114,122.00$   1,212,116.00$   1,083,312.00$   
Budgeted Operating Rate Subsidy Revenue 351,184.00$      362,750.00$      234,252.00$      182,800.00$      100,000.00$      
Projected Passenger Miles 604,653              555,461              499,758              375,734              200,000$            
Projected Passenger Trips 57,586                51,271                47,596                45,846                30,000$              
Avg Passenger Trip Length miles 10.5 10.8 10.5 8.2 6.70                     
Group Load Rate persons 3.10$                  3.00$                  3.06$                  3.01$                  4.00$                  
Rate per passenger trip if not subsidized 21.71$                28.43$                23.41$                26.44$                36.53$                

Note: This report is used for informational purposes only and is not submitted as part of the rate model. 

TD Rate Model 5 Year Comparison



Preliminary Information Worksheet Version 1.4

CTC Name:

County (Service Area):

Contact Person:

Phone #

Check Applicable Characteristic:

ORGANIZATIONAL TYPE: NETWORK TYPE:

 Governmental  Fully Brokered

 Private Non-Profit  Partially Brokered

 Private For Profit  Sole Source

Once completed, proceed to the Worksheet entitled 

"Comprehensive Budget"

Charlotte County Transit (CCT)

Charlotte

Heidi Maddox

941.833.6234
Provide the name and phone 

number of the contact person 

knowledgeable about the CTC’s 

services and financial data used in 

this Rate Calculation Model.

6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved:  Preliminary Information
Page 1 of 1



Comprehensive Budget Worksheet Version 1.4 CTC:  Charlotte County Transit (CCT)

County:  Charlotte

1. Complete applicable GREEN  cells in columns 2, 3, 4, and 7

Prior Year's 

ACTUALS

Current Year's 

APPROVED 

Budget, as 

amended

Upcoming Year's 

PROPOSED 

Budget

from from from Confirm whether revenues are collected as a system subsidy VS 

Oct 1st of Oct 1st of 1 a purchase of service at a unit price.

2021 2022 2023

to to to

Sept 30th of Sept 30th of Sept 30th of

2022 2023 2024 Explain Changes in Column 6 That Are > ± 10% and Also > ± $50,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

REVENUES   (CTC/Operators ONLY / Do NOT include coordination contractors!)

Local Non-Govt

Farebox 6,175$             -100.0%

Medicaid Co-Pay Received  

Donations/ Contributions  

In-Kind, Contributed Services  

Other  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

Local Government

District School Board  

Compl. ADA Services  

County Cash 433,997$         608,167$            488,192$           40.1% -19.7%

County In-Kind, Contributed Services  

City Cash  

City In-kind, Contributed Services  

Other Cash  

Other In-Kind, Contributed Services  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

CTD

Non-Spons. Trip Program 335,579$         400,000$            400,000$           19.2% 0.0%

Non-Spons. Capital Equipment  

Rural Capital Equipment  

Other TD (specify in explanation)  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

USDOT & FDOT

49 USC 5307  

49 USC 5310  

49 USC 5311 (Operating) 174,043$         82,800$              82,800$             -52.4% 0.0%

49 USC 5311(Capital)  

Block Grant  

Service Development  

Commuter Assistance  

Other DOT (specify in explanation) 70,203$           100,000$            100,000$           42.4% 0.0%

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

AHCA

Medicaid  

Other AHCA (specify in explanation)  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

DCF

Alcoh, Drug & Mental Health  

Family Safety & Preservation  

Comm. Care Dis./Aging & Adult Serv.  

Other DCF (specify in explanation)  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

DOH

Children Medical Services  

County Public Health  

Other DOH (specify in explanation)  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

DOE (state)

Carl Perkins  

Div of Blind Services  

Vocational Rehabilitation  

Day Care Programs  

Other DOE (specify in explanation) 26,215$           25,000$              25,000$             -4.6% 0.0%

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

AWI

WAGES/Workforce Board  

Other AWI (specify in explanation)  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

DOEA

Older Americans Act  

Community Care for Elderly  

Other DOEA (specify in explanation)  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

DCA

Community Services  

Other DCA (specify in explanation)  

Bus Pass Admin. Revenue  

Other DOEA = Senior Friendship

Other DOT = 5310 Operating

% Change 

from Prior 

Year to 

Current 

Year

Proposed 

% Change 

from 

Current 

Year to 

Upcoming 

Year

Farefree at this  time.

County cash includes matchfor 5310, 5311, TD, and unfunded expenses.

Estimated revenue based on anticipated ridership not actual allocation.

If you are pricing School Board services using the rates in this 

spreadsheet, confirm so in the explanation.  Also, in the Program-

Wide Rates sheet, INCLUDE the trip and passenger miles on the 

respective sheets IF you are using the rate model to price your 

School Board services.

EXPLAIN whether the 5311 operating revenue is generated as 

an overall system operating expense subsidy OR being paid at 

the per unit trip or mile rates generated by this or prior 

spreadsheets.  This will determine where to place the revenue 

in the following Budgeted Rate Base sheet.

Figures in this column should be 

auditable; related to the 

transportation services priced by 

the rate model; and supported by 

a documented cost allocation plan 

in multi-functional organizations.

This spreadsheet has the ability to accurately calculate both a "subsidized" & "unsubsidized" price for 

services.  However, in certain situations it can NOT do both perfectly IF you have included Expense, 

Revenue, and trip/mile projections related to services that are priced different than what is calculated by 

this spreadsheet.

Ideally, you should have a "documented" cost/revenue allocation plan that relates to each functional 

activity or differently priced service; and each differently priced service would have its own rate model 

spreadsheet.  In reality it is not uncommon to have certain purchased transportation services priced 

minutely different than what this rate model has calculated.  It is important to know, in these situations the 

calculated rate will be subsidizing the transportation services which have a special price, OR vice versa.

The prelude to putting any expense and revenue information into this pricing spreadsheet is to determine 

the portion of such expense and revenues attributable to the services being priced, and to do so in 

accordance with your documented cost/revenue allocation plan.  Your cost/revenue allocation plan should 

be available for review by auditing agencies.

 

6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved:  Comprehensive Budget
Page 1 of 2



Comprehensive Budget Worksheet Version 1.4 CTC:  Charlotte County Transit (CCT)

County:  Charlotte

1. Complete applicable GREEN  cells in columns 2, 3, 4, and 7

Prior Year's 

ACTUALS

Current Year's 

APPROVED 

Budget, as 

amended

Upcoming Year's 

PROPOSED 

Budget

from from from Confirm whether revenues are collected as a system subsidy VS 

Oct 1st of Oct 1st of 1 a purchase of service at a unit price.

2021 2022 2023

to to to

Sept 30th of Sept 30th of Sept 30th of

2022 2023 2024 Explain Changes in Column 6 That Are > ± 10% and Also > ± $50,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

% Change 

from Prior 

Year to 

Current 

Year

Proposed 

% Change 

from 

Current 

Year to 

Upcoming 

Year

Figures in this column should be 

auditable; related to the 

transportation services priced by 

the rate model; and supported by 

a documented cost allocation plan 

in multi-functional organizations.

This spreadsheet has the ability to accurately calculate both a "subsidized" & "unsubsidized" price for 

services.  However, in certain situations it can NOT do both perfectly IF you have included Expense, 

Revenue, and trip/mile projections related to services that are priced different than what is calculated by 

this spreadsheet.

Ideally, you should have a "documented" cost/revenue allocation plan that relates to each functional 

activity or differently priced service; and each differently priced service would have its own rate model 

spreadsheet.  In reality it is not uncommon to have certain purchased transportation services priced 

minutely different than what this rate model has calculated.  It is important to know, in these situations the 

calculated rate will be subsidizing the transportation services which have a special price, OR vice versa.

The prelude to putting any expense and revenue information into this pricing spreadsheet is to determine 

the portion of such expense and revenues attributable to the services being priced, and to do so in 

accordance with your documented cost/revenue allocation plan.  Your cost/revenue allocation plan should 

be available for review by auditing agencies.

 

APD

Office of Disability Determination  

Developmental Services  

Other APD (specify in explanation)  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

DJJ

(specify in explanation)  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

Other Fed or State

xxx  

xxx  

xxx  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

Other Revenues

Interest Earnings  

xxxx  

xxxx  

Bus Pass Program Revenue  

Balancing Revenue to Prevent Deficit

Actual or Planned Use of Cash Reserve

Balancing Revenue is Short By = None None

Total Revenues = $1,046,212 $1,215,967 $1,095,992 16.2% -9.9%

EXPENDITURES  (CTC/Operators ONLY / Do NOT include Coordination Contractors!)

 Operating Expenditures
Labor 264,019$         231,161$            236,764$           -12.4% 2.4%

Fringe Benefits 131,349$         141,043$            132,378$           7.4% -6.1%

Services 22,955$           12,475$              49,000$             -45.7% 292.8%

Materials and Supplies 1,927$             500$                   1,000$               -74.1% 100.0%

Utilities 36,978$           35,632$              39,437$             -3.6% 10.7%

Casualty and Liability 4,144$             4,351$                4,351$               5.0% 0.0%

Taxes  

Purchased Transportation:  

Purchased Bus Pass Expenses  

School Bus Utilization Expenses  

Contracted Transportation Services 486,271$         565,483$            468,166$           16.3% -17.2%

Other 900$                -100.0%

Miscellaneous 175$                28,635$              2,500$               16262.9% -91.3%

Operating Debt Service - Principal & Interest  

Leases and Rentals 5,527$             8,762$                8,762$               58.5% 0.0%

Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund  

In-Kind, Contributed Services -$                     -$                        -$                        

Allocated Indirect 91,967$           153,634$            153,634$           67.1% 0.0%

 Capital Expenditures

Equip. Purchases with Grant Funds 34,291$               -100.0%

Equip. Purchases with Local Revenue  

Equip. Purchases with Rate Generated Rev.  

Capital Debt Service - Principal & Interest  

 

$0

Total Expenditures = $1,046,212 $1,215,967 $1,095,992 16.2% -9.9%

See NOTES Below.

Once completed, proceed to the Worksheet entitled  "Budgeted Rate Base"

Contracted Transportation Services = savings in drivers and bus washer 

contract - new vendor;

Services increase due to Lawn Maint not being budgeted in current year;

Misc =  Advertising Legal (1,000), Dues and Membership (1,500) which is less 

than prior year; Materials and Supplies increase due to postage; Utilities 

increase due to increased rates

ACTUAL year GAIN (program revenue) MUST be reinvested as a trip or system subsidy.  Adjustments must be Identified and explained in a following year, or 

applied as a Rate Base Adjustment to proposed year's rates on the next sheet.

Monies Contributed to Capital Equipment Replacement Fund annually 

based on a depreciation schedule for existing equipment are treated as 

operating expenditures.  When replacement equipment is actually 

purchased from this Fund, it should NOT appear again as a capital 

expenditure on this worksheet.  That would be double counting.
Includes capital equipment purchased with grant 

funds, or local or rate-generated revenues, or 

with Debt Service Payments (principal and 

interest) – but NOT with revenues from the 

Contrib. to Capital Equipment Replacement Fund.

6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved:  Comprehensive Budget
Page 2 of 2



Budgeted Rate Base Worksheet Version 1.4 CTC: Charlotte County Transit (CCT)

County: Charlotte

1. Complete applicable GREEN  cells in column 3; YELLOW  and BLUE  cells are automatically completed in column 3

2. Complete applicable GOLD  cells in column and 5

Upcoming Year's 

BUDGETED 

Revenues

from

Oct 1st of

2023

to

Sept 30th of

2024

1 2 3 4 5

REVENUES (CTC/Operators ONLY)

Local Non-Govt

Farebox -$                             -$                             YELLOW cells
Medicaid Co-Pay Received -$                             -$                             are NEVER Generated by Applying Authorized Rates

Donations/ Contributions -$                             -$                             

In-Kind, Contributed Services -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

Local Government

District School Board -$                             -$                             -$                             BLUE cells

Compl. ADA Services -$                             -$                             -$                             Should be funds generated by rates in this spreadsheet
County Cash 488,192$                488,192$                -$                             

County In-Kind, Contributed Services -$                             -$                             -$                             

City Cash -$                             -$                             

City In-kind, Contributed Services -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other Cash -$                             -$                             

Other In-Kind, Contributed Services -$                             -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

CTD local match req. GREEN cells

Non-Spons. Trip Program 400,000$                400,000$                -$                             -$                             44,444$      MAY BE Revenue Generated by Applying

Non-Spons. Capital Equipment -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                 Authorized Rate per Mile/Trip Charges

Rural Capital Equipment -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                 

Other TD -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

USDOT & FDOT

49 USC 5307 -$                             -$                             -$                             

49 USC 5310 -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                 

49 USC 5311 (Operating) 82,800$                  82,800$                  

49 USC 5311(Capital) -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                             -$                 

Block Grant -$                             -$                             -$                             

Service Development -$                             -$                             -$                             

Commuter Assistance -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other DOT 100,000$                100,000$                

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

AHCA

Medicaid -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other AHCA -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

DCF

Alcoh, Drug & Mental Health -$                             -$                             -$                             

Family Safety & Preservation -$                             -$                             -$                             

Comm. Care Dis./Aging & Adult Serv. -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other DCF -$                             -$                             GOLD cells

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

DOH

Children Medical Services -$                             -$                             -$                             

County Public Health -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other DOH -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

DOE (state)

Carl Perkins -$                             -$                             -$                             

Div of Blind Services -$                             -$                             -$                             

Vocational Rehabilitation -$                             -$                             -$                             

Day Care Programs -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other DOE 25,000$                  25,000$                  -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

AWI

WAGES/Workforce Board -$                             -$                             -$                             

AWI -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

DOEA

Older Americans Act -$                             -$                             -$                             

Community Care for Elderly -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other DOEA -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

DCA

Community Services -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other DCA -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

Fill in that portion of budgeted revenue in Column 2 that will be 

GENERATED through the application of authorized per mile, per 

trip, or combination per trip plus per mile rates.   Also, include 

the amount of funds that are Earmarked as local match for 

Transportation Services and NOT Capital Equipment 

purchases.  

If the Farebox Revenues are used as a source of Local Match 

Dollars, then identify the appropriate amount of Farebox 

Revenue that represents the portion of Local Match required on 

any state or federal grants.  This does not mean that Farebox is 

the only source for Local Match.  

Please review all Grant Applications and Agreements containing 

State and/or Federal funds for the proper Match Requirement 

levels and allowed sources.

What amount of the 

Budgeted Revenue 

in col. 2 will be 

generated at the rate 

per unit determined 

by this spreadsheet, 

OR used as local 

match for these type 

revenues?

Budgeted Rate 

Subsidy Revenue 

EXcluded from 

the Rate Base

What amount of the 

Subsidy Revenue in 

col. 4 will come from 

funds to purchase 

equipment, OR will 

be used as match 

for the purchase of 

equipment?

Fill in that portion of Budgeted Rate Subsidy Revenue in 

Column 4 that will come from Funds Earmarked by the Funding 

Source for Purchasing Capital Equipment.  Also include the 

portion of Local Funds earmarked as Match related to the 

Purchase of Capital Equipment if a match amount is required by 

the Funding Source.

If the Farebox Revenues are used as a source 

of Local Match Dollars, then identify the 

appropriate amount of Farebox Revenue that 

represents the portion of Local Match required 

on any state or federal grants.  This does not 

mean that Farebox is the only source for Local 

Match, nor that all farebox revenue is applied 

as match.  Please review all Grant Applications 

and Agreements containing State and Federal 

funds for the proper Match Requirement levels 

and allowed sources.  Farebox revenues 

beyond that needed for match is typically 

applied as system subsidy in column 4.

What amount of these funds are earmarked as 

local match on a transportation service grant?  

See GREEN CELL notes on the right.  Revenues 

beyond that needed for match is typically 

applied as system subsidy in column 4.

What amount of these funds are 

earmarked as local match on a 

transportation service grant?  See GREEN 

CELL notes on the right. Revenues beyond 

that needed for match is typically applied 

as system subsidy in column 4.

What amount of these funds are earmarked as 

local match on a transportation service grant?  

See GREEN CELL notes on the right.  Revenues 

beyond that needed for match is typically 

applied as system subsidy in column 4, unless 

they are being generated by the purchase of 

services at the rates calculated by this 

spreadsheet.
Show only the amount of revenue that is generated 

by billing the funding source for transportation 

services provided at the approved rate per unit.  

Also, include the amount of funds that are 

earmarked for local match for Transportation 

Services and not Capital Equipment purchases.

Show only the amount of revenue that is 

generated by billing the funding source for 

Transportation Services provided at the 

approved rate per unit.  Also, include the 

amount of funds that are earmarked for local 

match for Transportation Services and 

not Capital Equipment purchases.

Purpose:  The Budgeted Rate Base worksheet determines the BASE funding 

amount that will be divided by the upcoming fiscal year's projected passenger 

miles and trips.  The initial rate base is the amount of expenditures that must 

be funded with rate-generated revenues.

Revenues EXcluded from the rate base will fund the remaining proposed 

expenditures.  EXcluded revenues include operating system subsidies and 

grants (including their match) that have been included in the proposed 

budget.

In this worksheet projected revenues are further differentiated between being 

generated: through the purchase of service at the unit price calculated in this 

spreadsheet (rate base); or as a system operating subsidy; or for purchasing 

capital equipment. 

Unless otherwise reconciled, the initial rate base may be adjusted upward or 

downward starting in the 3rd year of using the Rate Calculation Model.  If 

necessary, appropriate and justified, the adjustment amount is based on 

program income (including unapproved profit) or losses from the prior year's 

"actual" and auditable figures.

A shift of Budgeted 

Rate Subsidy 

Revenue from 

column 4 to this 

column RAISES 

your rate.

A shift of Actual 

Rate subsidy 

revenue from 

column 4 to this 

column RAISES 

your rate.

6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved:  Budgeted Rate Base
Page 1 of 2



Budgeted Rate Base Worksheet Version 1.4 CTC: Charlotte County Transit (CCT)

County: Charlotte

1. Complete applicable GREEN  cells in column 3; YELLOW  and BLUE  cells are automatically completed in column 3

2. Complete applicable GOLD  cells in column and 5

Upcoming Year's 

BUDGETED 

Revenues

from

Oct 1st of

2023

to

Sept 30th of

2024

1 2 3 4 5

What amount of the 

Budgeted Revenue 

in col. 2 will be 

generated at the rate 

per unit determined 

by this spreadsheet, 

OR used as local 

match for these type 

revenues?

Budgeted Rate 

Subsidy Revenue 

EXcluded from 

the Rate Base

What amount of the 

Subsidy Revenue in 

col. 4 will come from 

funds to purchase 

equipment, OR will 

be used as match 

for the purchase of 

equipment?

Purpose:  The Budgeted Rate Base worksheet determines the BASE funding 

amount that will be divided by the upcoming fiscal year's projected passenger 

miles and trips.  The initial rate base is the amount of expenditures that must 

be funded with rate-generated revenues.

Revenues EXcluded from the rate base will fund the remaining proposed 

expenditures.  EXcluded revenues include operating system subsidies and 

grants (including their match) that have been included in the proposed 

budget.

In this worksheet projected revenues are further differentiated between being 

generated: through the purchase of service at the unit price calculated in this 

spreadsheet (rate base); or as a system operating subsidy; or for purchasing 

capital equipment. 

Unless otherwise reconciled, the initial rate base may be adjusted upward or 

downward starting in the 3rd year of using the Rate Calculation Model.  If 

necessary, appropriate and justified, the adjustment amount is based on 

program income (including unapproved profit) or losses from the prior year's 

"actual" and auditable figures.APD

Office of Disability Determination -$                             -$                             -$                             

Developmental Services -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other APD -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

DJJ

DJJ -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other Fed or State

xxx -$                             -$                             

xxx -$                             -$                             

xxx -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

Other Revenues

Interest Earnings -$                             -$                             -$                             

xxxx -$                             -$                             

xxxx -$                             -$                             

Bus Pass Program Revenue -$                             -$                             -$                             

Balancing Revenue to Prevent Deficit

Actual or Planned Use of Cash Reserve -$                             -$                             -$                             

Total Revenues = 1,095,992$             913,192$                182,800$                -$                             

EXPENDITURES (CTC/Operators ONLY) 182,800$           

  Operating Expenditures

Labor 236,764$                

Fringe Benefits 132,378$                

Services 49,000$                  

Materials and Supplies 1,000$                    

Utilities 39,437$                  

Casualty and Liability 4,351$                    

Taxes -$                             

Purchased Transportation:

Purchased Bus Pass  Expenses -$                             

School Bus Utilization Expenses -$                             

Contracted Transportation Services 468,166$                

Other -$                             

Miscellaneous 2,500$                    

Operating Debt Service - Principal & Interest -$                             

Leases and Rentals 8,762$                    

Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund -$                             

In-Kind, Contributed Services -$                             

Allocated Indirect 153,634$                

  Capital Expenditures

Equip. Purchases with Grant Funds -$                             

Equip. Purchases with Local Revenue -$                             

Equip. Purchases with Rate Generated Rev. -$                             

Capital Debt Service - Principal & Interest -$                             

-$                             

Total Expenditures = 1,095,992$             -$                    

minus  EXCLUDED Subsidy Revenue = 182,800$                

Budgeted Total Expenditures INCLUDED in 

Rate Base = 913,192$                

Rate Base Adjustment
1
 =

Adjusted Expenditures Included in Rate 

Base = 913,192$           

1 
The Difference between Expenses and Revenues for Fiscal Year: 2021 - 2022

Once Completed, Proceed to the Worksheet entitled  "Program-wide Rates"

Amount of Budgeted 

Operating Rate 

Subsidy Revenue

1 Rate Base Adjustment Cell

If necessary and justified, this cell is where you 
could optionally adjust proposed service rates 
up or down to adjust for program revenue (or 
unapproved profit), or losses from the Actual
period shown at the bottom of the 
Comprehensive Budget Sheet. This is not the
only acceptable location or method of 
reconciling for excess gains or losses.  If 
allowed by the respective funding sources, 
excess gains may also be adjusted by providing 
system subsidy revenue or by the purchase of 
additional trips in a period following the Actual 
period.  If such an adjustment has been made, 
provide notation in the respective exlanation 
area of the Comprehensive Budget tab.

This RED cell displays the difference 

between the totals for col. 4 and col. 5.  

Both Operating and Capital subsidy 

revenues are removed from the rate 

base calculations.

6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved:  Budgeted Rate Base
Page 2 of 2



Worksheet for Program-wide Rates CTC: Charlotte County Transit (CCT)Version 1.4

County: Charlotte

1. Complete Total Projected Passenger Miles and ONE-WAY Passenger Trips ( GREEN  cells) below

Do NOT include trips or miles related to Coordination Contractors!

Do NOT include School Board trips or miles UNLESS…........

INCLUDE all ONE-WAY passenger trips and passenger miles related to services you purchased from your transportation operators!

Do NOT include trips or miles for services provided to the general public/private pay UNLESS..

Do NOT include escort activity as passenger trips or passenger miles unless charged the full rate for service!

Do NOT include fixed route bus program trips or passenger miles!

PROGRAM-WIDE RATES

Total Projected Passenger Miles = 200,000 Fiscal Year

Rate Per Passenger Mile = 4.57$        2023 - 2024

Total Projected Passenger Trips = 30,000

Rate Per Passenger Trip = 30.44$      Avg. Passenger Trip Length = 6.7 Miles

Rate Per Passenger Mile = 5.48$        

Rate Per Passenger Trip = 36.53$      

Once Completed, Proceed to the Worksheet entitled  "Multiple Service Rates"

Vehicle Miles

The miles that a vehicle is scheduled to or actually travels from the time it pulls out from its garage to go into revenue service to the time it pulls in from revenue service.

Vehicle Revenue Miles (VRM)

The miles that vehicles are scheduled to or actually travel while in revenue service. Vehicle revenue miles exclude:

Deadhead

Operator training, and

Vehicle maintenance testing, as well as

School bus and charter services.

Passenger Miles (PM)

The cumulative sum of the distances ridden by each passenger.

Rates If No Revenue Funds Were Identified As Subsidy 

Funds

This worksheet inputs the CTC’s total projected passenger miles and total projected passenger trips 

related to the projected expenses & revenues entered into this spreadsheet.  A program-wide rate per 

passenger mile and rate per passenger trip will be computed for comparison purposes only.  The total 

projected passenger miles and passenger trips on this worksheet are automatically carried over and 

used in the following worksheet (Multiple Service Rates) where the rates are further differentiated by 

ambulatory, wheelchair, stretcher, and group services.

In addition to displaying the program-wide rates, the worksheet also calculates what those program-

wide rates would need to be in order to generate enough revenue to balance the CTC’s proposed budget 

if all grants and operating subsidies were eliminated. 

This spreadsheet calculates both a "subsidized" & "unsubsidized" price for services.  However, in certain 

situations it can NOT do both perfectly IF you have included Expense, Revenue, and trip/mile projections 

related to services that are priced different than what is calculated by this spreadsheet.

Ideally, you should have a "documented" and consistantly applied cost/revenue allocation plan that 

relates to each functional activity or differently priced service; and each differently priced service would 

have its own rate model spreadsheet.  In reality it is not uncommon to have certain purchased 

transportation services priced minutely different than what this rate model has calculated.  It is 

important to know, in these situations the calculated rate will be subsidizing the transportation services 

which have a special price, OR vice versa.

The prelude to putting any expense and revenue information into this pricing spreadsheet is to 

determine the portion of such expense and revenues attributable to the services being priced, and to do 

so in accordance with your documented cost/revenue allocation plan.  Your cost/revenue allocation plan 

should be available for review by auditing agencies.

 

UNLESS, you are pricing their services with this 

spreadsheet and you have included their respective 

revenue and expenses in the comprehensive budget.
UNLESS, you are pricing their 

services with this spreadsheet and 

you have included their respective 

revenue and expenses in the 

comprehensive budget!    If so, you 

must enter their revenue as LOCAL 

NON-GOVT "OTHER" or "OTHER 

REVENUES", and explain in the 

respective section.

6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved:  Program-wide Rates
Page 1 of 1



Worksheet for Multiple Service Rates
CTC: Charlotte County Transit (CCT)Version 1.4

1. Answer the questions by completing the GREEN cells starting in Section I for all services County: Charlotte

2. Follow the DARK RED prompts directing you to skip or go to certain questions and sections based on previous answers

SECTION I:  Services Provided
Ambulatory 1 Wheelchair 2 Stretcher 1 Group

1.
Yes      Yes    Yes     Yes     

No        No       No       No       

Go to Section II 

for Ambulatory 

Service

Go to Section II 

for Wheelchair 

Service

STOP! Do NOT 

Complete 

Sections II - V 

for Stretcher 

Service

Go to Section II 

for Group 

Service

SECTION II:  Contracted Services
Ambulatory 2 Wheelchair 2 Stretcher 2 Group

1. Will the CTC be contracting out any of these Services TOTALLY in the upcoming budget year?....
Yes      Yes    Yes     Yes     

No        No       No       No       

Skip # 2, 3 &  4 

and Go to 

Section III for 

Ambulatory 

Service

Skip # 2, 3 &  4 

and Go to 

Section III for 

Wheelchair 

Service

Do Not 

Complete 

Section II for 

Stretcher 

Service

Skip # 2, 3 &  4 

and Go to 

Section III for 

Group Service

2.
1 Yes     1 Yes     2 Yes     1 Yes     

No       No       No       No       

Leave Blank Leave Blank

Do NOT 

Complete 

Section II for 

Stretcher 

Service Leave Blank

3. If you answered YES to #1 & #2 above, how much is the proposed contract amount for the service? -$                      

How many of the total projected Passenger Miles relate to the contracted service? 0

How many of the total projected passenger trips relate to the contracted service? 0

Effective Rate for Contracted Services: Ambulatory Wheelchair Stretcher Group

per Passenger Mile =

per Passenger Trip =

Go to Section III 

for Ambulatory 

Service

Go to Section III 

for Wheelchair 

Service

Do NOT 

Complete 

Section II for 

Stretcher 

Service

Go to Section III 

for Group 

Service

4. If you answered # 3 & want a Combined Rate per Trip PLUS a per Mile add-on for 1 or more Combination Trip and Mile Rate

services, INPUT the Desired per Trip Rate (but must be less than per trip rate in #3 above =

Rate per Passenger Mile for Balance =

 Leave Blank 

and Go to 

Section III for 

Ambulatory 

Service 

 Leave Blank 

and Go to 

Section III for 

Wheelchair 

Service 

 Do NOT 

Complete 

Section II for 

Stretcher 

Service 

 Leave Blank 

and Go to 

Section III for 

Group Service 

Will the CTC be providing any of these Services to transportation disadvantaged passengers in the 

upcoming budget year?........................................................................................

If you answered YES to #1 above, do you want to arrive at the billing rate by simply dividing the proposed 

contract amount by the projected Passenger Miles / passenger trips?.....

6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved:  Multiple Service Rates
Page 1 of 2



Worksheet for Multiple Service Rates
CTC: Charlotte County Transit (CCT)Version 1.4

1. Answer the questions by completing the GREEN cells starting in Section I for all services County: Charlotte

2. Follow the DARK RED prompts directing you to skip or go to certain questions and sections based on previous answers

SECTION III:  Escort Service 2

1. Do you want to charge all escorts a fee?................................................................. Yes       

No         

Skip # 2 - 4 and 

Go to Section IV

2. If you answered Yes to #1, do you want to charge the fee per passenger trip OR ………....    Pass. Trip   1 Leave Blank

per passenger mile?.........................         Pass. Mile    

3. If you answered Yes to # 1 and completed # 2, for how many of the projected 

Passenger Trips / Passenger Miles will a passenger be accompanied by an escort? Leave Blank

-$                   

4. How much will you charge each escort?.................................................................... Leave Blank

SECTION IV:  Group Service Loading

1.

number of Group Service Passenger Miles? (otherwise leave blank)............................ 40,000

Loading Rate

………. And what is the projected total number of Group Vehicle Revenue Miles? 10,000 4.00 to 1.00

SECTION V:  Rate Calculations for Mulitple Services:

1.

* Miles and Trips you input must sum to the total for all Services entered on the "Program-wide Rates" Worksheet, MINUS miles 

  and trips for contracted services IF the rates were calculated in the Section II above

* Be sure to leave the service BLANK if you answered NO in Section I or YES to question #2 in Section II

RATES FOR FY: 2023 - 2024

Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group

Leave Blank

Projected Passenger Miles (excluding totally contracted services addressed in Section II) = 200,000 = 134,000 + 26,000 + + 40,000

Rate per Passenger Mile = $4.62 $7.91 $0.00 $2.23 $8.90

per passenger per group

Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group 
Leave Blank

Projected Passenger Trips (excluding totally contracted services addressed in Section II) = 30,000 = 18,000 + 5,100 + + 6,900

Rate per Passenger Trip = $30.37 $52.06 $0.00 $14.64 $58.57

per passenger per group

2 If you  answered # 1 above and want a COMBINED Rate per Trip PLUS a per Mile add-on for 1 or more services,… Combination Trip and Mile Rate

Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group

Leave Blank

…INPUT the Desired Rate per Trip (but must be less than per trip rate above) = $0.00

Rate per Passenger Mile for Balance = $4.62 $7.91 $0.00 $2.23 $8.90
per passenger per group

Rates If No Revenue Funds Were Identified As Subsidy Funds

Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group

Rate per Passenger Mile = $5.54 $9.50 $0.00 $2.67 $10.68

per passenger per group

Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group

Rate per Passenger Trip = $36.45 $62.48 $0.00 $17.57 $70.29

per passenger per group

           Program These Rates Into Your Medicaid Encounter Data

You Must 

Complete This 

Section!

 

If the message "You Must Complete This Section" appears to the right, what is the projected total

Input Projected Passenger Miles and Passenger Trips for each Service in the GREEN cells and the Rates for each Service will be calculated automatically 

 

6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved:  Multiple Service Rates
Page 2 of 2



Revised: 4/1/2023 
Effective: 6/1/2023 

 

CHARLOTTE COUNTY TRANSIT 
 

CANCELLATION AND NO-SHOW POLICY 
 

I. OBJECTIVE 
 

Establishment of a formal policy regarding transportation services cancellations and no-shows, thereby 
minimizing the costs and scheduling inefficiencies.  The objective of this policy is to reduce customer 
cancellations and no-shows, while giving the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) the 
flexibility to handle these situations on a case-by-case basis. 

 
II. DEFINITIONS AND REFERENCES 

 
A. Customer is defined as the trip requester. 
 
B. A TD customer refers to anyone who satisfies the guidelines outlined in Chapter 427, Florida Statues 

- “Transportation Disadvantaged” means those persons who because of physical or mental disability, 
income status, or age are unable to transport themselves or to purchase transportation and are, 
therefore, dependent upon others to obtain access to health care, employment, education, shopping, 
social activities, or other life-sustaining activities, or children who are handicapped or high-risk or 
at-risk as defined in s. 411.202. 
 

C. An Advanced cancellation occurs when a customer calls to give advance notice more than 
one (1) hour prior to the operation of a trip.  

 
D. A No-show is defined as when a customer who called for a pick-up is not at the scheduled 

time and did not call-in advance to cancel (more than one (1) hour before scheduled pick-
up time).   
 

E. Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) is a transportation entity recommended by 
a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), or by the appropriate designated official 
planning agency, as approved for in F.S. 427.011-427.017 to ensure that coordinated 
transportation services are provided to the transportation disadvantaged population in the 
designated service area. In Charlotte County, the CTC is Charlotte County Transit. 

 
III. DIRECTIVES 
 

1. Dispatcher shall verbally inform all customers, at time of initial reservation of no-show and 
cancellation policy and will mail a copy of the Policy. 
 

2. Dispatch will automatically cancel a scheduled return trip when (origination trip) is a no-
show.  

3. A passenger who accumulates four (4) no-shows in six (6) months or less (January-June or July-
December) on their service record, may lose the privilege of ride services under the following 
progressive measures: 



Revised: 4/1/2023 
Effective: 6/1/2023 

 4 no shows in 6 months, 30-day suspension.  

 Each additional no show after initial 30-day suspension will result in an additional 
30-day suspension 

 Falsifying one’s identity during a no-show suspension will result in permanent 
suspension 

 Attempting to be a guest during a no-show suspension will increase a passenger’s 
suspension time another 30 days 
 
All progressive measures may be on a case-by-case basis and can be subject 

to extended suspensions or termination of services. 
 

First Warning: After first no-show or late cancellation, passenger will receive a notice in 
the mail containing the no-show or late cancellation date. 
 
Second Warning: After second no-show or late cancellation, passenger will receive a 
Warning notice in the mail containing the no-show or late cancellation dates. 
 
Final Warning: After the third no-show or late cancellation, passenger will receive a Final 
Warning notice in the mail containing the no-show or late cancellation dates. 
 
Suspension Letter: Suspension letter will be mailed to customer containing no-show or late 
cancellation dates and dates of suspension from service.  
 

4. Cancellation at the door, or less than one (1) hour prior to your scheduled pickup time is 
considered a no-show. 
 

5. Upon arrival of the bus, if a passenger does not board within three (3) minutes, the driver will 
leave, the passenger will be marked as a no-show and will need to reschedule. Reasonable 
Modifications may be made for individuals with disabilities. 

 

6. Excessive advanced cancellations will generate a standing order suspension after 6 
cancellations in 2 weeks. Continuous cancellations will result in suspension per #3 of this 
policy. Additionally, the following conditions apply:  

 Standing orders are defined as same pickup time, location, and destination daily 
and can be scheduled up to one month at a time. 

 Individual trips: 
o Schedule up to three (3) per phone call 
o An individual trip can be scheduled up to one month in advance 

 
7. The grievance process is available to any customer wishing to appeal the decision of the CTC.  

This process is described in the Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) and 
available online: www.charlottecountyfl.gov/transit/. 

 
 

Florida Law and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 Prohibits Discrimination in: 
Public accommodation on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, 

handicap, or of marital status. Persons believing they have been discriminated against 
on these conditions may file a complaint with the Florida Commission on Human 

Relations at 850.488.7082 or 800.342.8170 (voice messaging). 



 
 
 
 
 

MAY 4, 2023 
LCB MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM # 7 

COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR (CTC) EVALUATION 
 
Purpose: To review the Charlotte County CTC Evaluation  
 
Agenda Item Presented by:  MPO Staff 
 
Discussion: 
 
Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 427, and Florida Administrative Code, Rule  
41-2, the Local Coordinating Board (LCB), with the assistance of the Official Planning Agency 
(OPA), conducts an annual performance evaluation of the Community Transportation 
Coordinator (CTC).  In Charlotte County, the designated CTC is the Charlotte County Board of 
County Commissioners (BCC), the governing board of the County Transit Division.  This year, 
the CTC Evaluation was conducted on February 13-15, 2023 by MPO Staff and LCB Member 
Maricela Morado. 
  
The CTC Evaluation document was developed utilizing sections of the CTC Evaluation 
Workbook and sample materials provided by the Florida Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged (CTD).   This year’s review involved a bus inspection and ride-along, as well as 
examination of documentation provided by Transit Division staff.  Additionally, surveys of 
riders and a vendor were conducted.   
 
Recommendation: Motion to approve the Draft Annual CTC Evaluation 
 
Attachment:  Draft 2023 Charlotte County CTC Evaluation 

 
  
 



CTC Review 
 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners 
Transit Division 

 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

Counties served: Charlotte        DRAFT 

Date(s) of Review: February 13-15, 2023     

PA Staff Assigned to Review: Wendy Scott and Betty-Ann Sherer 
       with LCB Member Maricela Morado 
 
I. Records and Areas of Review 
 

A. General Information 
B. Chapter 427, F.S. 
C. Rule 41-2, F.A.C. 
D. Americans with Disabilities Act 
E. Bus/Van Ride 
F. Surveys 
G. Follow-up of previous QAPE Review 
H. Additional Observations 
I. Current Year Trip and Equipment Grant 

 
II. Findings and Recommendations 

 
A.  General Information 

In October 1987, the Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners (BCC) through its 
Transit Division was designated by the Florida Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged (CTD) as the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) for Charlotte 
County.  This relationship has continued to this day.  On March 30, 2021, the CTD 
designated the BCC as the CTC for the next 5-year period.  The Charlotte County Transit 
Division operates a governmental system in a small urbanized area. 
Area of Noncompliance: None 
Recommendation: None 
Timeline for Compliance: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CTC Review 
 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners 
Transit Division 

 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 

B.  Chapter 427, F.S. 
The CTC complies with Chapter, 427, F.S., by fulfilling the requirements specified in 
427.0155, F.S.  This includes assuming full responsibility for the delivery of transportation 
services for the transportation disadvantaged.  Another task achieved is executing contracts 
for driver and bus washer services, disaster stretcher services and non-profit operators 
serving as volunteer organizational partners.  A new contract for driver and bus washer 
services took effect on October 1, 2022 with a new provider.  The CTC also collects annual 
operating data and reviews all applications for local, state (including transportation 
disadvantaged) and federal (including Section 5310) grant funding, and develops cost-
effective and efficient coordination strategies.  
Area of Noncompliance: None  
Recommendation: None 
Timeline for Compliance:  None 
 

C.  Rule 41-2, F.A.C. 
The CTC fully complies with Rule, 41-2, F.A.C.  These requirements further refine those 
stated in Chapter 427, F.S.  A key requirement is possession of an awareness of all 
transportation disadvantaged resources available or planned in the Charlotte County service 
area.  Equipped with this knowledge, the CTC plans, coordinates and implements the most 
cost-effective system possible under existing conditions including funding constraints.  The 
CTC performs this task very well, enhancing travel opportunities for TD passengers by 
offering discounted fares for general paratransit service (life enhancing trips beyond life 
sustaining TD trips), during normal times.  However, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
BCC began providing free fares for all riders, whether the trips were TD or Section 5307 
grant funded.  Following a November 4, 2016 Compliance Monitoring (CM) review, Charlotte 
County Transit staff developed an excellent Transportation Disadvantaged application 
(effective July 1, 2017) in order to document rider eligibility and improve record retention.  
It has been used as a model for other CTCs.  Additionally, inclusion of required language in 
operator contracts has also resulted from the CM review recommendations.  
Area of Observation: None 
Recommendation: None 
Timeline for Compliance: None 
 

D.  Americans with Disabilities Act 
The CTC follows all guidelines required by the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Charlotte 
County transit service is a “paratransit only” (door-to-door) system and meets the needs of 
all disabled TD clients. 
Area of Noncompliance: None 
Recommendation: None 
Timeline for Compliance:  None 

 



CTC Review 
 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners 
Transit Division 

 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 

E.  Bus/Van Ride 
On February 13, 2023, MPO staff and LCB Member Morado participated in a Mid-County TD 
trip.  The trip was conducted with three passengers (two of whom were TD clients) and 
Driver Deborah Richards using a Charlotte County Transit vehicle to transport riders to and 
from the DAVITA Dialysis Center, 4300 Kings Hwy, Unit 406 in Charlotte Harbor, FL.  A full 
discussion of the trip is attached.  
Areas of Noncompliance:  Bus safety item 
Recommendation:  Repair, remove or replace a loose headrest adjacent to the bus 
passenger side entrance.  It was observed that passengers used this headrest to assist with 
bus entry.  Additionally, the driver’s tablet was malfunctioning and required a swap out at 
the Transit Facility mid-day. 
Timeline for Compliance: Address the headrest issue as soon as possible.  Driver tablet 
issue was immediately resolved. 
 

F.  Surveys (see attachment) 
Area of Noncompliance: None 
Recommendation: None 
Timeline for Compliance: None 
 

G.  Follow-up of previous QAPE/CM Review (if applicable) 
Previous Area of Noncompliance:  The last QAPE/CM Review was conducted by Thomas 
Howell Ferguson, P.A. and CTD staff on April 29, 2019 for the July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2018 
fiscal year.  
Status:  Completed. 

      Timeline for Compliance: None 
 

 



CTC Review 
 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners 
Transit Division 

 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 

H.  Additional Observations 
As CTC, the Charlotte County BCC has performed the delivery of TD services in 
Charlotte County for more than three decades, handling the transportation needs of the 
County’s most transit dependent populations.  A portion of this work is achieved with 
volunteer programs, where the County provides the vehicles, while the participating 
organizations furnish volunteer drivers.  All types of trips are accomplished including    
rides to out-of-county veterans’ medical facilities.  Also, the CTC has obtained several 
grants to assist local passengers.  These include funding from Section 5310 (Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities) and in some years, Section 5311 
(Rural Area Formula) Grants. 

 
The Transit Division utilizes the County’s website, Transit Services | Charlotte County, 
FL (charlottecountyfl.gov), to provide information to citizens desiring to use transit 
services.  Passengers may download a TD Services application.  There are also links to 
the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged and the Florida Commuter 
Services websites.  Passenger informational brochures are available on the website or in 
hard copy in both English and Spanish. 

 
 

  

  I.  Current Year Trip and Equipment Grant (if applicable) 
The Trip and Equipment Grant for Charlotte County currently runs from July 1, 2022 
through June 30, 2023. 
Area of Noncompliance: None  
Recommendation: None  

 
 

III. Conclusion 
 
The Charlotte County Transit Division is doing a commendable job of fulfilling its 
Transportation Disadvantaged program mission.  This is especially true as it emerges 
from the COVID-19 pandemic, only to deal with Category IV Hurricane Ian’s direct hit to 
the community.  Driver and County staff shortages have added to the challenge of 
service provision.  The only required corrective action is the repair, removal or 
replacement of the loose passenger headrest discovered in the vehicle used in the trip 
to the dialysis facility.   
 
It is also recommended that in addition to the County’s website (where the fare is 
correctly displayed), the County’s current “free transit fare” policy be marketed to the 
public through all means possible (including newspaper advertisements, promotional 
brochures, business cards, CC-TV 20 broadcasts, etc. with updated fare information.)  
This enhanced marketing recommendation has been discussed at recent LCB Meetings.  



CTC Review 
 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners 
Transit Division 

 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 

The upcoming development of the County’s 10-Year Transit Development Plan will 
afford the opportunity to Charlotte County Transit to publicize the current transit service 
and to consider service upgrades.  This document is due to FDOT by September 2024. 
 
The passage of Hurricane Ian may offer an opportunity to serve Charlotte County’s 
storm victims who soon will be housed in some collective FEMA trailer sites.  As was 
done after Hurricane Charley, Charlotte County Transit may have the opportunity to 
provide scheduled shuttle service to nearby groceries, pharmacies and stores, as well as 
medical appointments from these locations. 
 

 
 

 
LCB Chairman:                               __________________ _____ 
   Commissioner Ken Doherty 
County:  Charlotte         
Date:   May 4, 2023         



CTC Review 
 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners 
Transit Division 

 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 
 

1.  BUS/VAN RIDE 
 

On February 13, 2023, MPO staff and LCB Member Morado (“the Evaluation Team”) 
accompanied Driver Deborah Richards and three passengers on a regularly 
scheduled Monday morning trip to and from the DAVITA Dialysis Center, 4300 Kings 
Hwy Unit 406 in Charlotte Harbor, FL.  The Evaluation Team boarded the bus at the 
new Transit Facility at 545 Theresa Blvd. prior to passenger pickup.  Ms. Richards 
was wearing the black uniform shirt and displayed her ID badge.  She was very 
attentive in providing boarding and exiting assistance to passengers based upon 
their levels of need and desires.  All passengers were ambulatory.  Both the Transit 
Division’s comment/complaint line and TD Ombudsman Helpline signage were 
posted.  The vehicle’s air conditioning, heat and two-way communication device 
were all in working order.  The bus seats were clean and in good condition.   
 
Noteworthy driver performance:  Deborah Richards performed her job very 
professionally, especially in assisting the passengers with their baggage.  She also 
escorted them to the facility door and assured that they were receiving assistance 
from facility staff.  Given the regularly scheduled residential and dialysis 
destinations, she was familiar with the riders and had a good understanding of their 
needs.  The atmosphere was very cordial both amongst passengers and with their 
driver.  It was evident that friendships had been formed.  There was a great deal of 
concern over the absence of two usual riders who were not present due to illness. 
 

2.  RIDER SURVEYS 
 

A County-wide survey of TD passengers who rode on February 13, 2023 was 
conducted on February 14, 2023 via telephone from the Transit Facility.  
Passenger average use of the Transportation Disadvantaged services was 3-5 
times per week (100%).  These figures reflect an increase in usage for the 3-5 
times per week category (tied to dialysis, congregate dining and work commute 
trips).  Trip purposes were for medical (75% of riders), employment (13%), 
nutritional (25%), educational/training/adult day care (0%), and life-
sustaining/other (12.5%).  Average satisfaction with the service on a scale of 1 to 
10 (10 being most satisfied) was 8.875, an increase of .435 points from the last 
CTC Evaluation, which was conducted in 2021 (part of the pandemic period).  
During the stressful time prior to and during Hurricane Ian’s passage, one 
customer encountered difficulty with scheduling needed dialysis treatments.  This 
issue has been resolved satisfactorily.   
 



CTC Review 
 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners 
Transit Division 

 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 

 
Comments received regarding “What does transportation mean to you?”: 
 
“This transportation means everything.  It means life (due to dialysis needs).” 
 
“The transit service helps with obtaining dialysis.” 
 
“The driver takes good care of us and helps me to the door.  She asks about the 
temperature in the vehicle and checks on my comfort.” 
 
“It is good to get out of the house and go somewhere, especially shopping.” 
 
“This transportation means independence.  I would love an online platform to book 
a bus ride.  I also would love to be able to book one month in advance.  The 
drivers are fantastic, and my usual driver reminds me to book my next rides.  It 
would be wonderful to receive a text if the bus is running late, so passengers 
wouldn’t have to wait outside in the heat.  The transportation helps me get to 
work, so transportation is everything.” 
 
“Charlotte County Transit is great and allows me the freedom to get around.  I 
would love consistency with pickup times.  The drivers are really helpful.  I would 
love the ability to have a standing appointment or be able to schedule service 
months in advance.” 
 
“Most drivers are very helpful and pleasant.  This program is wonderful.  Uber is so 
expensive.  I would love to have Saturday service and a more consistent pickup 
time.”  
 
“Charlotte County Transit is so much nicer than any other service.  I love to meet 
my friends on the bus, go to the meal site and enjoy the activities.  The new bus 
driver is very nice, pleasant, helpful and patient.” 
 

3.  CONTRACT OPERATOR  SURVEYS 
 
The CTC currently has a new contract operator (providing bus driver and bus washing 
services) effective October 1, 2022.  For the evaluation AOR timeframe, the old provider 
was Ameditrans.  The new contractor is A&Associates.  CTD staff directed MPO staff to 
survey the new contractor for this CTC Evaluation.  
 
 
 



CTC Review 
 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners 
Transit Division 

 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 

 
 Do the riders contact your facility directly to cancel a trip? 

The contractor stated “no,” because the County handles these arrangements.  
Her firm only provides contract drivers and bus washers. 

 Do the riders/beneficiaries call your facility directly to issue a 
complaint? The contractor stated “no,” because the County handles these 
arrangements.  Her firm only provides contract drivers and bus washers. 

 Do you have a toll-free phone number for a rider/beneficiary to issue 
commendations and/or complaints posted on the interior of all vehicles 
that are used to transport TD riders?  If yes, is the phone number 
posted the CTC’s? 
The contractor stated that her drivers utilized County vehicles that have the 
posted signage. 

 Are the invoices you send to the CTC paid in a timely manner? 
The operator responded “yes.”   

 Does the CTC give your facility adequate time to report statistics? 
The operator responded “yes.” 

 Have you experienced problems with the CTC? 
The operator responded “no.” 
 

4.  PURCHASING AGENCY SURVEYS 
 
The only purchaser of non-sponsored services from the CTC is the CTD; therefore, the 
purchasing agency survey was not applicable.  (This is in keeping with the procedures 
established by the firm of Thomas Howell Ferguson at the time of the previous 
QAPE/CM conducted November 4, 2016). 



CTC Review 
 

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners 
Transit Division 

 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 

5. ANNUAL QA SELF CERTIFICATION 
 

Note from MPO Staff:  Thanks to Laura Richards and Heidi Maddox in the Charlotte 
County Transit Division for their assistance in conducting this year’s CTC Evaluation. 



 
 
 
 

MAY 4, 2023 
LCB MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM # 8 

COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR (CTC) QUARTERLY REPORTS 
FOR OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2022 AND JANUARY-MARCH 2023 

 
Purpose: To provide two quarterly reports of TD transit activities  
 
Agenda Item Presented by: Charlotte County Staff 
       
Discussion: 
 
These quarterly reports are presented to describe recent activities of the Community 
Transportation Coordinator (CTC).  This is an informational item. 
  
Recommendation: None 
 
Attachment:  October-December 2022 and January-March 2023 CTC Quarterly Reports 
 



















 
 
 
 

MAY 4, 2023 
LCB MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM # 9 

SECTION 5311 GRANT APPLICATION  
 

Purpose: To provide Local Coordinating Board (LCB) members an opportunity to 
review/endorse Charlotte County’s “Off-Cycle” FFY 2020/2021 Section 5311 
(Operating) Grant Application for Rural Areas.   

  
Agenda Item Presented by: Charlotte County Staff 
       
Discussion: 
 
Federal transportation legislation includes the FTA Section 5311 (Rural) funding program, which 
is aimed at enhancing mobility for transit passengers located in non-urbanized areas.  Charlotte 
County Transit has applied in April 2023 for an operating Section 5311 grant at the invitation of 
the FDOT Transit Office, since there is unused funding available for Federal Fiscal Year 
2020/2021.  This opportunity was not offered during the normal cycle of grant funding (so it is 
termed “off cycle.”). 
 
Recommendation: Motion to endorse the Section 5311 Grant Application 
 
Attachment:  Charlotte County Transit Section 5311 Grant Application 



OMB Number: 4040-0004

Expiration Date: 11/30/2025

* 1. Type of Submission: * 2. Type of Application:

* 3. Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:

5a. Federal Entity Identifier: 5b. Federal Award Identifier:

6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:

* a. Legal Name:

* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): * c. UEI:

* Street1:

Street2:

* City:

County/Parish:

* State:

Province:

* Country:

* Zip / Postal Code:

Department Name: Division Name:

Prefix: * First Name:

Middle Name:

* Last Name:

Suffix:

Title:

Organizational Affiliation:

* Telephone Number: Fax Number:

* Email:

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):

* Other (Specify):

State Use Only:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

d. Address:

e. Organizational Unit:

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Preapplication

Application

Changed/Corrected Application

New

Continuation

Revision

1001

Charlotte County Board of County Commissioners

59-6000541 W8YJZF4NSQL1

545 Theresa Blvd.

Port Charlotte

FL: Florida

USA: UNITED STATES

33954-0000

Budget & Administrative Serv Transit

Richard

Kolar

Transit Operations Manager

941-833-6242

Richard.Kolar@charlottecountyfl.gov



* 9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:

* Other (specify):

* 10. Name of Federal Agency:

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

CFDA Title:

* 12. Funding Opportunity Number:

* Title:

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title:

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

* 15. Descriptive Title of Applicant's Project:

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

B: County Government

Federal Transit Administration

20.509

Formula Grants for Rural Areas

5311 Operating:  Continue to provide transit service in rural areas of Charlotte County where 
public services are unavailable. 

View AttachmentsDelete AttachmentsAdd Attachments

View AttachmentDelete AttachmentAdd Attachment



* a. Federal

* b. Applicant

* c. State

* d. Local

* e. Other

* f.  Program Income

* g. TOTAL

.

Prefix: * First Name:

Middle Name:

* Last Name:

Suffix:

* Title:

* Telephone Number:

* Email:

Fax Number:

* Signature of Authorized Representative: * Date Signed:

18. Estimated Funding ($):

21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements 
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances** and agree to 
comply with any resulting terms if I accept an award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims  may 
subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001)

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency 
specific instructions.

Authorized Representative:

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

* a. Applicant

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.

 * b. Program/Project

* a. Start Date: * b. End Date:

16. Congressional Districts Of:

17. Proposed Project:

17 17

Rural Map.pdf Add Attachment Delete Attachment View Attachment

10/01/2023 09/30/2024

82,800.00

82,800.00

165,600.00

a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.

c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

Yes No

Add Attachment Delete Attachment View Attachment

** I AGREE

Hector 

Flores

County Administrator

941-743-1321

Hector.Flores@charlottecountyfl.gov

* 20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?  (If "Yes," provide explanation in attachment.)

* 19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

If "Yes", provide explanation and attach 



edwardsm
Polygonal Line

edwardsm
Sticky Note
Nonrural

edwardsm
Polygonal Line

edwardsm
Polygonal Line

edwardsm
Polygonal Line

edwardsm
Polygonal Line

edwardsm
Polygonal Line

edwardsm
Pencil

edwardsm
Text Box
  Charlotte County Rural Areas         (outlined in gray)


	1May 4, 2023 agenda page
	4 Consent Agenda Page
	4A Agenda Item  approval of LCB PUBLIC MTG minutes cover page 050423
	4A Attachment LCB Minutes of January 5 2023 Public Meeting bas laks DH
	4B AGENDA ITEM approval of LCB Regular Meeting Minutes 050423
	4B Attachment Draft LCB Minutes January 5 2023 Meeting bas DH Laks
	4C AGENDA ITEM May23CTD Planning Grant
	5 AGENDA ITEM May23 TDTF Trip&EquipGrant
	6 AGENDA ITEM May23FinalTDSP Update
	6 Attachment 1 TDSP Change Pages
	6 Attachment 2 1 TDSP Change Page TDRateModel 5 Year Comparison
	6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved 1
	6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved 2
	6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved 3
	6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved 4
	6 Attachment 2 2023-2024 Charlotte Rate Model Approved 5
	6 Attachment 4 CCT No Show  Late Cancel Policy_Effective 6.1
	7 AGENDA ITEM May23CTCEval
	7 Attachment CTC2023eval050423
	8 AGENDA ITEM CTCQtrlyReportsLCB050423 Cover Page
	8 Attach Quarterly Reports
	9 AGENDA ITEM Section 5311 Grant Application Update
	9 Attachment SF424_4_0-V4.0



